



Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee

Date:	Tuesday, November 26, 2019
Place:	Anderson Room Richmond City Hall
Present:	Councillor Harold Steves, Chair Councillor Michael Wolfe Councillor Chak Au Councillor Bill McNulty Councillor Linda McPhail
Also Present:	Councillor Alexa Loo Councillor Carol Day
Call to Order:	The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

MINUTES

It was moved and seconded That the minutes of the meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee held on October 29, 2019, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE

December 18, 2019, (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in the Anderson Room

DELEGATION

1. Jim McGrath and Eileen Donovan to presented the petition requesting improved hours of access at Steveston Pool (copy on-file, City Clerk's Office), and expressed that increased utilization of the Steveston Pool has extensive community support and would be cost-effective as the potential additional revenue would help offset additional staffing costs. Mr. McGrath suggested that the Pool be opened seven days a week starting in May and ending in September and that proposed schedule could accommodate usage by the local swim club and special swim meet events. He distributed a sample resolution presented to the City of Vancouver Board of Parks and Recreation to extend the schedule of their outdoor pools (attached to and forming part of these minutes as Schedule 1).

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) the demographics of the users of the pool, (ii) previous proposals to install a roof over the Steveston Pool for all-year use, and (iii) reviewing different pricing structures during off-peak hours.

In reply to queries from Committee regarding alternative outdoor pools in the City, Ms. Donovan noted that the South Arm Pool is a recreational pool that is not suitable for lap swimming. Staff added that site options for the proposed new Steveston Community Centre are currently under review.

As a result of the discussion, the following **referral motion** was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That staff review extending the Steveston Pool's schedule from May to September and the budget implications of such an extension and report back to the December 18, 2019 Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee meeting.

CARRIED

COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

2. STEVESTON HARBOUR AUTHORITY ARCHWAY SIGN -REQUEST FOR FUNDING

(File Ref. No. 11-7000-01) (REDMS No. 6336689)

Robert Kiesman, Steveston Harbour Authority, expressed that the proposed sign has community support and that its installation can be completed in a cost-effective manner. It was moved and seconded

That funding of \$50,000 from the Council Community Initiative Account to the Steveston Harbour Authority to support the Steveston Harbour Authority Archway Sign, and that the expenditure be included in the Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2020-2024), as outlined in the staff report "Steveston Harbour Authority Archway Sign – Request for Funding" dated November 1, 2019 from the Director, Arts, Culture and Heritage Services.

CARRIED

3. THE PUBLIC TREE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2045: A PLAN FOR MANAGING RICHMOND'S PUBLIC URBAN FOREST (File Ref. No. 10-6550-07) (REDMS No. 6266663)

Staff presented a video on the proposed Public Tree Management Strategy (copy on-file City Clerk's Office), noting that (i) the proposed Strategy targets planting up to 850 trees annually, (ii) GIS data and data gathered from analyzing the city's tree canopy will be used to identify areas for planting, and (iii) drought resistant tree species will be examined for new plantings.

Cllr. Loo left the meeting (4:20 p.m.) and did not return.

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) enhancing the city's natural areas, parks and suburban areas, (ii) identifying potential areas for tree planting along the city's streets and greenways, (iii) protecting trees during landscaping, (iv) composting fallen leaves, (v) sourcing alternative best practices standards, (vi) options to increase the targets for tree plantings, (vii) encouraging the growth of lower layers of the urban forest canopy, and (viii) timing of tree transplantations during the year.

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that the Strategy will be posted on the City's website and that opportunities for community engagement and awareness will be explored.

It was moved and seconded

- (1) That the Public Tree Management Strategy 2045, as detailed in the staff report titled "The Public Tree Management Strategy 2045: A Plan for Managing Richmond's Public Urban Forest," dated October 31, 2019 from the Director, Parks Services, be endorsed; and
- (2) That the Council Policy for the Public Urban Forest, as detailed in the staff report titled "The Public Tree Management Strategy 2045: A Plan for Managing Richmond's Public Urban Forest," dated October 31, 2019 from the Director, Parks Services, be endorsed.

CARRIED

4. GARDEN CITY LANDS UPDATE AND SITE ACTIVATION PLAN (File Ref. No. 06-2345-20-GCIT1) (REDMS No. 6329663)

Discussion ensued with regard to attaining accurate costs estimates for the Garden City Lands soil remediation options and staff noted that further analysis and soil evaluation is recommended.

Cllr. Wolfe left the meeting (5:01 p.m.) and returned (5:02 p.m.).

It was moved and seconded

That the staff report titled "Garden City Lands Update and Site Activation Plan," dated October 31, 2019, from the Director, Parks Services, be received for information.

CARRIED

Information related to soil remediation on the Garden City Lands was distributed (attached to and forming part of these minutes as Schedule 2).

Discussion then ensued with regard to contaminated soils received from Harvest Power and locating clean soil sources within the city.

As a result of the discussion, the following **motion** was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That Parks staff consider composting and soil remediation for the Garden City Lands at the Garden City Lands, and no compost from other facilities unless guaranteed of organic quality and free of contaminants.

CARRIED

5. MANAGER'S REPORT

(i) Dedication Program Renewal Process

Paul Brar, Manager, Parks Programs, updated Committee on the Dedication Program renewal process, noting that some contacts were sent incorrect letters. Mr. Brar added that corrected letters have since been sent to the appropriate recipients.

(ii) Richmond Sports Council Facility Needs Assessments

Gregg Wheeler, Manager, Sport and Community Events, noted that a memorandum regarding the timeline of the prioritization of the Richmond Sports Council Facility Needs Assessment has been distributed to Council members.

(iii) Richmond Events

Marie Fenwick, Director, Arts, Culture and Heritage Services, updated Committee on on-going events in the city, including Christmas in the Village in Steveston and the upcoming ArtRich event at the Richmond Art Gallery starting on December 6, 2019.

(iv) Minoru Centre for Active Living Fitness Centre

Elizabeth Ayers, Director, Recreation and Sport Services, noted that the Fitness Centre in the Minoru Centre for Active Living will be opening in January 2020.

The Chair advised that Sturgeon Banks Eco Walkway will be considered as Item No. 5A, Maritime Festival Tall Ship Gun Battle as Item No. 5B, and Richmond Sister City Program as Item No. 5C.

5A. STURGEON BANKS ECO WALKWAY

(File Ref. No.)

Discussion ensued with regard to constructing an eco walkway along Sturgeon Banks, and information on the proposed walkway was distributed (attached to and forming part of these minutes as Schedule 3).

As a result of the discussion, the following **motion** was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That the City of Richmond consider building an Eco Walkway out over Sturgeon Banks. A walkway was previously recommended straight out from the West Dyke but the land was crown owned. A smaller walkway was approved in the Richmond Trails Plan in 1979. Richmond now owns the foreshore at Terra Nova.

CARRIED

5B. MARITIME FESTIVAL TALL SHIP GUN BATTLE

(File Ref. No.)

Discussion ensued with regard to the upcoming 2020 Maritime Festival and inviting one tall ship to participate in the gun battle with schooner *Providence*.

Information on the proposal was distributed (attached to and forming part of these minutes as Schedule 4).

In accordance with Section 100 of the Community Charter, Cllr. McPhail declared to be in a conflict of interest as her husband has an interest in the schooner *Providence*, and Cllr. McPhail left the meeting – 5:14 p.m.

Discussion then ensued with regard to the potential cost of the proposed tall ship gun battle and in reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that the participating ships have not been confirmed and staff can examine whether the proposed event can be accommodated into the Maritime Festival's budget.

As a result of the discussion, the following **motion** was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That the City of Richmond consider an annual gun battle between the halibut schooner Providence and a visiting tall ship at the Maritime Festival. A cannon could be purchased and a different ship challenged every year.

CARRIED

Cllr. McPhail returned to the meeting -5:16 p.m.

5C. RICHMOND SISTER CITY PROGRAM

(File Ref. No.)

A proposed resolution on the Richmond Sister City Program was distributed (attached to and forming part of these minutes as Schedule 5).

Discussion ensued with regard to incorporating a climate knowledge exchange into the Richmond Sister City Program, and as a result, the following **resolution** was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

Whereas the Richmond Sister City program is for Cultural and Sport exchanges, to promote intercultural learning opportunities;

Whereas the City of Richmond has declared a Climate Emergency and is working to achieve carbon reduction in line with the IPCC targets to hold warming to 1.5C;

Whereas the City of Richmond is a climate leader in district energy and other areas;

Whereas there are international cities which are more advanced in achieving carbon reductions in active transportation and other areas;

Therefore be it resolved that the City of Richmond incorporated Climate Knowledge exchange into the program goals for the Richmond Sister City Program, to achieve mutually beneficial opportunities to further reduce carbon emissions and create additional opportunities for citizens to be part of the economic and social transition to a low-carbon society.

The question on the resolution was not called as discussion ensued with regard to exploring expanding the Richmond Sister City Program to include climate-leading cities in Europe.

The question on the resolution was then called and it was **CARRIED**.

ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded *That the meeting adjourn (5:21 p.m.).*

CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee of the Council of the City of Richmond held on Tuesday, November 26, 2019.

Councillor Harold Steves Chair Evangel Biason Legislative Services Coordinator



Schedule 1 to the Minutes of the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee meeting of Richmond City Council held on Tuesday, November 26, 2019.

Outdoor Pool Extended Season Pilot

Excerpted from Minutes 2019-11-18

MOVED by Commissioner Irwin SECONDED by Commissioner Coupar

WHEREAS:

- 1. Outdoor pools are well-loved by the residents of Vancouver;
- Kitsilano Pool, which first opened in 1931, underwent extensive renovations in 2017-2018 that included installing new basin membrane, reducing potable water use, and replacing gas pumps with electric that significantly reduce noise and fuel emissions;
- 3. New Brighton Pool is the Park Board's only heated outdoor pool in East Vancouver;
- 4. The VanSplash Advisory Group called for extended seasons at Kitsilano and New Brighton pools to provide equitable access to both East Side and West Side residents in Vancouver; and
- 5. Staff have previously piloted extending the end of the outdoor pool season by 1-2 weeks at both Kitsilano and New Brighton pools.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

- A. THAT the Vancouver Park Board approve a pilot to extend the regular 2020 swimming season at Kitsilano and New Brighton Outdoor Pools by opening 2-3 weeks earlier in the spring and closing 3-4 weeks later in the fall; and
- B. FURTHER THAT Park Board staff analyze the costs, benefits, and impacts of this extended outdoor pool season pilot and report back to the Board with recommendations for the 2021 season.

REFERRED

(Commissioners Barker, Coupar, and Irwin opposed)

Schedule 2 to the Minutes of the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee meeting of Richmond City Council held on Tuesday, November 26, 2019.

Referral: Oct. 23, 2019 Cala

To: Public Works committee

From: Councillor Harold Steves

Re: Soil Remediation potential Richmond Go Kart Track

- (1) The Richmond Go Kart Track is immediately north of the city of Richmond soils site. South of the soils site is a city road allowance. The three sites combined could be used for an expanded soil remediation site.
- (2) The Garden City Lands have areas of contamination the may need clean fertile soil over the contaminated areas.
- (3) Richmond farms frequently request permission to put fill on farmland.
- (4) Fill from Metro Vancouver excavations is low on organics and microbes, generally has poor capillarity for groundwater to rise to the surface and may need irrigation from the city water system.
- (5) The City of Richmond has banned cosmetic pesticides. When composted the leaves and lawn clippings qualify for use on organic farms and gardens.

It is recommended that the City of Richmond consider use of the entire soil and Go Kart site for soil remediation by composting lawn clippings and leaves from city parks and combining with Richmond topsoil, subsoil and imported soils. The soil would be used for fill and land levelling purposes.

Further:

That Parks staff consider composting and soil remediation for the garden City Lands and no compost from other facilities unless guaranteed of organic quality and free of contaminants

Schedule 3 to the Minutes of the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee meeting of Richmond City Council held on Tuesday, November 26, 2019.

To: Parks Committee

From: Councillor Harold Steves

Date: Nov. 26, 2019

RE: Sturgeon Banks Eco Walkway

Recommendation:

That the City of Richmond consider building an Eco Walkway out over Sturgeon Banks. A walkway was previously recommended straight out from the West Dyke but the land was crown owned. A smaller walkway was approved in the Richmond Trails Plan in 1979. Richmond now owns the foreshore at Terra Nova.

Harold Steves, City councilor



Sturgeon Banks Eco Walkway

John L. Young <johnlyoung@shaw.ca>

Sat 2019-11-23 1:25 PM Inbox

To:Steves,Harold <hsteves@richmond.ca>;

Dear Harold:

RE: The Sturgeon Banks Eco Walkway

Good talking to you this morning at the Awards Ceremony.

At one point we were discussing the idea of building an Eco Walkway or boardwalk out and back over Sturgeon Banks. This walkway would be an excellent educational tool to inform young and old about the flora and fauna found on the Banks. Along the walkway educational information boards could be posted describing and naming what can be seen and heard. Perhaps students could complete a teacher-made worksheet in order to focus their attention. Perhaps a small tower could be built at the far end of the boardwalk for a better view of the Banks, Vancouver Island and the North Shore mountains. As well, this boardwalk would be a great attraction for visitors to Richmond. Hopefully, financing could come from all three levels of government.

All the best, Cheers, John L. Young

7620 Barkerville Court Richmond, BC V7A 1K9 Home: 604 274 6905



Schedule 4 to the Minutes of the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee meeting of Richmond City Council held on Tuesday, November 26, 2019.

To: Parks Committee

From: Councillor Harold Steves

Date: Nov. 26, 2019

RE: Maritime Festival Tall Ship Gun Battle

Recommendation:

That the City of Richmond consider an annual gun battle between the halibut schooner Providence and a visiting tall ship at the Maritime Festival. A cannon could be purchased and a different ship challenged every year.

aro

Harold Steves, City councilor

Schedule 5 to the Minutes of the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee meeting of Richmond City Council held on Tuesday, November 26, 2019.

Nov. 26th 2019 Parks, Recreation and Culture Committee Councillor Wolfe

Resolution to consider:

Whereas the Richmond Sister City program is for Cultural and Sport exchanges, to promote intercultural learning opportunities;

Whereas the City of Richmond has declared a Climate Emergency and is working to achieve carbon reduction in line with the IPCC targets to hold warming to 1.5C;

Whereas the City of Richmond is a climate leader in district energy and other areas;

Whereas there are international cities which are more advanced in achieving carbon reductions in active transportation and other areas;

Therefore be it resolved that the City of Richmond incorporate Climate Knowledge exchange into the program goals for the Richmond Sister City program, to achieve mutually beneficial opportunities to further reduce carbon emissions and create additional opportunities for citizens to be part of the economic and social transition to a low-carbon society.